
          

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

CITY OF NORTH PORT 
SARASOTA COUNTY 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
& PUBLIC HEARING  

MARCH 10, 2022 
11:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.westvillagesid.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
19503 S. West Villages Parkway, Meeting Room Across From #A14 

Venice, Florida 34293 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87509654850 
Code: 11036 Meeting ID: 875 0965 4850 

Dial In:1-929-436-2866 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

March 10, 2022 
11:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………..................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions 

E. Comments from the Public on All Agenda Items 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. February 10, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes………………………….Page 2 

G. General District Matters 

1. Public Hearing 

a. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………..Page 7 

b. Receive Public Comments on Adopting Revised Permit and Development Review Rates, 
Fees and Charges 

c. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting Revised Permit and Development Review 
Rates, Fees and Charges………………………………………………………………………Page 8 

2. Consider Ratification of Agreement to Implement the Uniform Method for the Collection 
and Enforcement of Non-Ad Valorem Assessments……………………………………………...Page 11 

H. Unit of Development No. 6 

1. Consider Ratification of Agreement with Environmental Consulting and Technologies Inc.……Page 13 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. District Engineer 

2. District Attorney 

3. District Operations Manager 

4. District Manager 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn  



���������������	 
����������������������
����������������

��������������������������������� ���

!"#$%&&'(%)*#�+),"$%#-./012345�16�78982:;8�<49805=>91/.64�:6�?89@3�AB�ACAADEFGHIEJ78982:;8�K:.6;LB�M0:9158NEHIFO�POQHRS>TKU�SM�VSWXY�?UU>TRZ[U7>�\T]]WZU7T?-XS\U?UR>�YT7>XTK>R:;1@4�12�3494/L�̂1_46�;38;�;34�V:895�:̀�7.a49_12:92�b�V:895�c�:̀�;34�[42;�\1008̂42�Tda9:_4d46;�Y12;91@;�b�Y12;91@;�c�e100�3:05�894̂.089�d44;16̂�:̀�;34�V:895�:6�?89@3�fCB�ACAAB�8;�ffgCC�Wh?h�94d:;40L�_18�i::d�@:dd.61@8;1:62�d4518�;4@36:0:̂L�865�16a492:6�8;�fjkCl�7h�[42;�\1008̂42�-89me8LB�16�;34�K:6̀4946@4�X::d�8@9:22�̀9:d�nWfoB�\461@4B�M0:9158�loAjlh�W;;46586@4�_18i::d�12�2;9:6̂0L�46@:.98̂45�16�014.�:̀�16=a492:6�8;;46586@4h>34�d44;16̂�12�:a46�;:�;34�a./01@�865�e100�/4�@:65.@;45�16�8@@:9586@4�e1;3�;34�a9:_121:62�:̀�M0:9158�08e�̀:9�@:dd.61;L54_40:ad46;�512;91@;2h�W�@:aL�:̀�;34�8̂4658�̀:9�;312�d44;16̂�d8L�/4�:/;81645�/L�@:6;8@;16̂�;34�Y12;91@;�?868̂49�/L�4d8108;�e@9:204Lp25216@h:9̂B�/L�;404a3:64�8;�jof=Aoo=AqCkB�:9�/L�_121;16̂�;34�Y12;91@;�2�e4/21;4B�e42;_1008̂4215h:9̂h�>312�d44;16̂d8L�/4�@:6;16.45�;:�8�58;4B�;1d4B�865�a08@4�;:�/4�2a4@1̀145�:6�;34�94@:95�8;�;34�d44;16̂hW2�8�a./01@�3480;3�a94@8.;1:6B�800�;3:24�8;;46516̂�;34�d44;16̂�16�a492:6�e100�/4�82m45�;:�e489�8�d82m�865�d816;816�2:@180512;86@16̂h�>34�Y12;91@;�̀.00L�46@:.98̂42�a./01@�a89;1@1a8;1:6�16�8�28̀4�865�4̀̀1@146;�d86649�16�01̂3;�:̀�;34�KS\TY=fj�a./01@3480;3�4d49̂46@Lh�>:�;38;�465B�;34�Y12;91@;�94@:dd4652�;38;�86L�d4d/49�:̀�;34�a./01@�16;4942;45�16�012;4616̂�;:�865a89;1@1a8;16̂�16�;34�d44;16̂�94d:;40L�5:�2:�/L�0:̂ 1̂6̂�16;:�i::d�_18�;3419�@:da.;49�8;3;;a2grr.2CAe4/hs::dh.2rtrqukCjvkoqkCwx3;;a2grr.2CAe4/hs::dh.2rtrqukCjvkoqkC�865�46;4916̂�;34�d44;16̂�TY�:̀�quk�Cjvk�oqkCB�-822@:54�ffClvB�:9�/L�518016̂�16;404a3:61@800L�8;�f=jAj=olv=Aqvv�865�46;4916̂�;34�@:6̀4946@4�1546;1̀1@8;1:6�6.d/49�quk�Cjvk�oqkCBa822@:54�ffClvhT6�;34�4_46;�;38;�;34�KS\TY=fj�a./01@�3480;3�4d49̂46@L�a94_46;2�;34�d44;16̂�̀9:d�:@@.9916̂�16=a492:6B�;34�Y12;91@;�d8L@:65.@;�;34�d44;16̂�46;1940L�/L�;404a3:64�:9�_154:�@:6̀4946@16̂�@:dd.61@8;1:62�d4518�;4@36:0:̂L�a.92.86;�;::̂_496d46;80�:95492B�16@0.516̂�/.;�6:;�01d1;45�;:�86L�9404_86;�Uy4@.;1_4�S95492�122.45�/L�Z:_496:9�Y4786;12B�865�86L4y;4621:62�:9�2.aa04d46;2�;3494:̀B�865�a.92.86;�;:�74@;1:6�fAChkobkcb/cAhB�M0:9158�7;8;.;42h�T6̀:9d8;1:6�8/:.;�3:e�;34d44;16̂�e100�:@@.9B�82212;86@4�@:664@;16̂�;:�;34�d44;16̂�:9�89986̂16̂�̀.9;349�8@@:dd:58;1:62�̀:9�a89;1@1a8;1:6B�865�86L:;349�z.42;1:62�@86�/4�855942245�/L�@:6;8@;16̂�;34�Y12;91@;�?868̂49�2�:̀ 1̀@4�8;�;34�a3:64�6.d/49�:9�4=d810�8/:_4B�:9�/L_121;16̂�;34�Y12;91@;�2�e4/21;4hS64�:9�d:94�7.a49_12:92B�2;8̀̀�:9�:;349�1651_15.802�894�86;1@1a8;45�;:�a89;1@1a8;4�/L�i::dh�-.92.86;�;:�;34�a9:_121:62�:̀�;34Wd491@862�e1;3�Y128/101;142�W@;B�86L�a492:6�94z.1916̂�2a4@180�8@@:dd:58;1:62�;:�a89;1@1a8;4�16�;312�d44;16̂�:9�;:�:/;8168@@422�;:�;34�;404a3:61@B�_154:�@:6̀4946@16̂B�:9�:;349�@:dd.61@8;1:62�d4518�;4@36:0:̂L�.245�;:�@:65.@;�;312�d44;16̂�1282m45�;:�85_124�;34�Y12;91@;�S̀ 1̀@4�8;�0482;�̀:9;L=41̂3;�boqc�3:.92�a91:9�;:�;34�d44;16̂�/L�@:6;8@;16̂�;34�Y12;91@;�?868̂49�8;jof=Aoo=AqCkh�T̀�L:.�894�348916̂�:9�2a44@3�1da81945B�a04824�@:6;8@;�;34�M0:9158�X408L�749_1@4�/L�518016̂�u=f=fB�:9�f=qCC=jkk=quuf�b>>{crf=qCC=jkk=quuC�b\:1@4cB�̀:9�815�16�@:6;8@;16̂�;34�Y12;91@;�?868̂49hU8@3�a492:6�e3:�54@1542�;:�8aa480�86L�8@;1:6�;8m46�8;�;3424�d44;16̂2�12�85_1245�;38;�a492:6�e100�6445�8�94@:95�:̀�;34a9:@44516̂2�865�;38;�8@@:9516̂0LB�;34�a492:6�d8L�6445�;:�462.94�;38;�8�_49/8;1d�94@:95�:̀�;34�a9:@44516̂2�12�d854B16@0.516̂�;34�;42;1d:6L�865�4_1546@4�.a:6�e31@3�2.@3�8aa480�12�;:�/4�/8245h[10018d�K9:204LB�Y12;91@;�?868̂49[42;�\1008̂42�K:dd.61;L�Y4_40:ad46;�Y12;91@;[U7>�\T]]WZU7�T?-XS\U?UR>�YT7>XTK>eeehe42;_1008̂4215h:9̂-|V]T7<g�ClrCArAA}�nvjvulvA
Page 1



Page 1 of 5 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 10, 2022 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The February 10, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the West Villages Improvement District 
(“WVID” or the “District”) was called to order at 11:00 a.m. at 19503 S. West Villages Parkway, 
#A4, Venice, Florida 34293 and via Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87509654850, Meeting 
ID: 875 0965 4850, Dial In: 1-929-436-2866. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed the notice of the Regular Board Meeting had 
been published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on February 2, 2022, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum, and it 
was in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman John Luczynski Present in person 
Vice Chairman Steve Lewis Present in person 
Supervisor Tom Buckley Present in person 
Supervisor Victor Dobrin Present in person 
Supervisor Christine Masney Present via Zoom 
 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Lindsay Whelan (via Zoom) Kutak Rock LLP 
District Engineer Richard Ellis  Dewberry 
 
Also present via Zoom were:  Michael McElligott of Special District Services, Inc.; Jim Miller of 
Dewberry and Kevin Shaughnessy. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1.  January 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 5 
 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Lewis approving the minutes of the 
January 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
G. GENERAL DISTRICT MATTERS 
 
 1.  Public Hearing – Uniform Method 
 
  a. Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed the notice of the Public Hearing had been 
published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on January 13, 2022, January 20, 2022, January 27, 
2022, and February 3, 2022, as legally required. 
 
  b. Receive Public Comment on Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying, 
Collecting and Enforcing Non-Ad Valorem Assessments 
 
There was no public comment on the Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying, 
Collection and Enforcing Non-Ad Valorem Assessments. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
  c. Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting Intent to Utilize the Uniform 
Method of Levying, Collecting and Enforcing Non-Ad Valorem Assessments 
 
Resolution No. 2022-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-03 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
EXPRESSING ITS INTENT TO UTILIZE THE UNIFORM 
METHOD OF LEVYING, COLLECTING, AND 
ENFORCING NON AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS 
WHICH MAY BE LEVIED BY THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 197.3632, FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Whelan stated that the District had previously adopted Resolutions 2004-16 and 2016-16 
regarding its intent to utilize the uniform method for the levying, collecting, and enforcing of 
such non-ad valorem assessments within certain of the lands within the District and that there is 
now a need to correct the legal description that was presented to Sarasota County regarding the 
District’s ability to collect assessments included as a specific line item on the County tax bill. 
Previous resolutions will be superseded upon the adoption of this resolution.  
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-03, as presented. 

Page 3



Page 3 of 5 
 

 2.  Consider Work Authorization No. 2022-01 Regarding Special District’s 
Stormwater 20-Year Needs Analysis 
 
Mr. Ellis presented Work Authorization No. 2022-01 for the preparation of a Stormwater 20-Year 
Needs Analysis, as required by Florida Statutes, which will be submitted to the County.  Florida 
Statutes, Sections 403.9301 and 403.9302, (see Chapter 2021-194, Laws of Florida), provide that 
“direct municipalities, counties, and independent special districts that provide a stormwater 
management system or program, or wastewater management services, are required to develop a 
20-year needs analysis every five years.”  
 
For the first cycle of reports, local governments must submit their reports to their respective 
counties by June 30, 2022.  The counties must compile the local reports (including their own) and 
submit them to EDR [Office of Economic & Demographic Research] and the secretary of the 
Department of Environmental Protection by July 31, 2022.  EDR will then publish an analysis of 
the stormwater and wastewater submissions in the 2023 edition of the Annual Assessments of 
Florida's Water Resources and Conservation Lands.  The next reporting cycle will begin in 2027. 
This mandate was received after the 2021/2022 budget was adopted and was not a considered 
expense.  The estimated cost of $20,000 will be paid from the Unit 1 fund balance.  
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously 
approving Work Authorization No. 2022-01 regarding the Special District’s Stormwater 20-Year 
Needs Analysis, as presented. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Proposed Homebuilder Rates and Fees 
 
Mr. Ellis presented an exhibit which reflected rates and fees that the District will charge for 
expenses related to building and developing in the District. These fees were previously not being 
charged. The Board will consider these rates and fees at the next meeting where a public hearing 
will also be held and if approved, will help offset expenses incurred.  
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Road Reserves 
 
At the request of the Chairman, Dewberry Engineering was asked to review the District road 
reserves to ensure that there will be funds for road projects in the future.  Mr. Ellis shared a 
spreadsheet which reflected cost estimates for road resurfacing, repairs, and potential road 
widening projects.  There are current balances for road reserves that have been accumulating 
since 2017.  This spreadsheet, which also considers inflation, will be used as a budgeting tool for 
the 2022/2023 budget and future years and will also help provide financial flexibility to Board 
Supervisors.  
 
 5.  Discussion Regarding Construction Traffic on District Roads 
 
Mr. Dobrin noted that he received resident concerns regarding heavy truck traffic on West 
Villages Parkway and suggested that heavy trucks be directed to use state roads such as River 
Road and US 41 as much as possible.  Mr. Luczynski stated that the River Road widening 
project had begun and will take approximately 3 years for completion.  He also noted that there 
was also a 9-12 month improvement project planned along US 41 from Preto Boulevard towards 
River Road that would begin this year, which may not make rerouting truck traffic practical until 
those projects have been completed.  It was noted that there was a construction entrance into 

Page 4



Page 4 of 5 
 

Renaissance located on West Villages Parkway.  District staff will continue to work with the 
City of North Port Police Department to help attenuate speeds on the roads.  
 
Further discussion on the widening of River Road continued.  There could possibly be a 
landscape buffer that could be lost along the boundary of the Preserve Community, and other 
areas that may impact the communities of Renaissance and Oasis.  There was a news article that 
indicated that FDOT was directing residents to contact the District with concerns regarding the 
road project. Mr. Ellis noted that he had spoken with the project manager and that the direction 
in news article was not correct.  Residents should correspond with FDOT for questions related to 
the project, as it is a State project.  District staff is working with the FDOT project manager and 
residents of the Preserve community (through its HOA and property manager) to try to come up 
with a sound and sight plan that could lower the impacts this expansion project may present.  The 
speed limit planned for the project will lower speeds from 55 MPH to 45 MPH, which should 
help reduce traffic sound. Landscape plans usually take place more towards the end of these 
types of projects.  
 
H. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. District Engineer 
 

Mr. Ellis reported that the paving project on Prestigio had been satisfactorily completed and in 
addition, as was discussed at the November meeting, he was continuing to work with assisting 
the City of North Port regarding the update to the FEMA study on flood maps.   
 

2.  District Attorney 

Ms. Whelan advised regarding the District Boundary Amendment legislation that was in process, 
which had its first committee hearing in early February and that committee favorably approved 
the legislation.  It will now be sent to one more committee before going to the full House of 
Representatives’ floor for consideration.  She indicated that the proceedings were moving 
forward as planned. 
 

3. District Operations’ Manager 
 
Mr. Smith reported that the final phase of the planned District drainage ditch cleaning would 
occur this month.  The final ditch to be cleaned originates on US 41 and runs through a portion 
of Gran Paradiso and then towards River Road.  There will be correspondence sent to the Gran 
Paradiso POA informing them of this planned project.  
 
 4.  District Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for March 10, 2022, and will include a Public Hearing on 
the District’s Revised Permit and Development Review Rates. 
 
I. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Dobrin asked if residents were permitted to install fountains in any of the District stormwater 
ponds. The District could allow only an HOA, not an individual resident, to install a fountain, 
subject to District Engineer approval with the condition that the installation and operation and 
maintenance would be the responsibility of the HOA.  
 

Page 5



Page 5 of 5 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 12:09 p.m. on a MOTION made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Lewis and 
passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 6



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
REVISED PERMIT AND DEVELOPMENT 

REVIEW RATES BY WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

A public hearing will be conducted by the Board of Supervisors (the 

“Board”) of the West Villages Improvement District (the “District”) on 

March 10, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. at 19503 S. West Villages Parkway, in the 

meeting room directly across from Suite #A14, Venice, Florida 34293.  

As a public health precaution, all those attending the meeting in person will 

be asked to wear a mask and maintain social distancing.  The District fully 

encourages public participation in a safe and efficient manner in light of the 

COVID-19 public health emergency. 

Attendance via Zoom is strongly encouraged in lieu of in-person attendance.  

To that end, the District recommends that any member of the public 

interested in listening to and participating in the meeting remotely do so 

by accessing the District’s website, www.westvillagesid.org and clicking on  

the meeting link you will find on the homepage, or utilizing the following 

login information:

Join by URL for VIDEO ACCESS at: 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87509654850?pwd=a1ZiQU5yYUI3MFlE

ZG1IUWxVT2xDdz09 

Passcode:  11036 

Meeting ID:  875 0965 4850

Join by PHONE for TELEPHONIC ACCESS at:  
Phone #:  1 929 436 2866 

Passcode:  11036 

Meeting ID:  875 0965 4850

Information may also be obtained by contacting the District Manager, 

William Crosley, at wcrosley@sdsinc.org or by calling (941) 244-2805.

In accordance with Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, the 

District hereby gives the public notice of its intent to adopt proposed 

revised rates relative to the provision of permit and development review 

fees (hereinafter, the “Revised Rates”).  The public hearing will provide an 

opportunity for the public to address the proposed Revised Rates for the 

provision of such services.  The proposed Revised Rates are attached hereto 

as Appendix A.

The proposed Revised Rates may be adjusted at the public hearing pursuant 

to discussion by the Board of Supervisors and public comment. The 

purpose and effect of the proposed Revised Rates is to provide for efficient 

and effective District operations, and to provide sufficient revenues to meet 

expenses and provide services within boundaries of the District.  Specific 

legal authority for the establishment and collection of the Revised Rates 

includes Chapter 2004-456(3)(2)(q), Laws of Florida, as amended.

The public hearing may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified 

on the record at the hearing.  If  anyone chooses to appeal any decision of 

the Board with respect to any matter considered at the public hearing, 

such person will need a record of the proceedings and should accordingly 

ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which includes 

the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. At the 

hearing, one or more Supervisors may participate in the public hearing by 

speaker telephone.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person 

requiring special accommodations to participate in this hearing is asked to 

advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the hearing 

by contacting the District Manager at (941) 244-2805. If  you are hearing 

or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-

8770, who can aid you in contacting the district Office.

Miscellaneous: 

Plat without lots review: less than 10 acres = $1,500 

Plat without lots review: greater than 10 acres = $2,500 

* Rates will be charged upon the occurrence of each Event for a project.

* All rates herein may be increased per year without the further need for a 

rate hearing by a maximum of five percent (5%) or the actual CPI for the 

previous twelve (12) months.

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
FO-28960477

APPENDIX A

Schedule of Proposed Revised Rates

Event Permit $250, plus any professional fees at regular billable rate 

for engineering or legal review, if  required

ROW Permit Review Fees
Review application (1 hr DE, 1 hr OM) $500

Pre-construction Meeting $500

Normal review during construction $500

Final walk through and acceptance $500

Total $2,000

Development Parcels Review Fees*
Event Single 

Family 

Residential 

less than 80 

lots

Single 

Family 

Residential 

80 to 250 

lots

Single 

Family 

Residential 

greater 

than 250 

lots

Multi-

family or 

Non-

residential 

less than 

5 acres

Multi-

family or 

Non-

residential 

greater 

than 5 

acres

Kick off 

meeting $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 

Review of 

Development 

Plans $750 $1,550 $2,250 $750 $1,550 

Preparation 

of irrigation 

and pond 

maintenance 

agreements $3,700 $5,850 $8,000 $3,700 $4,200 

Plat Review 

and CONP 

Coordination $1,000 $1,500 $2,000 $0 $0 

Final 

Review and 

Acceptance 

of Irrigation 

improvements $500 $1,000 $1,500 $500 $1,000 

Total $6,450 $10,400 $14,250 $5,450 $7,250 

Page 7



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ADOPTING REVISED PERMIT AND DEVELOPMENT 
REVIEW RATES, FEES AND CHARGES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended (the “Act”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Section (3)(2)(q) of the Act authorizes the District to prescribe, fix, 
establish, and collect rates, fees, rentals, fares, or other charges for the property, facilities and 
services made available, furnished, or to be furnished by the District, and to recover the cost of 
making or authorizing the connection to any District facility or system or installing works or 
improvements on or within District property interests; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District previously adopted Resolution 2021-14 providing for certain 
rates relative to the provision of permit and development review fees (hereinafter, the “Rates”) to 
provide for efficient and effective District operations, and to provide sufficient revenues to meet 
expenses and provide services within the boundaries of the District; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) finds that it is in the 
best interests of the District to adopt revised Rates (hereinafter, the “Revised Rates”) in order to 
offset the budgetary impact that permit and development review will have to the general fund 
budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on the matter which has been publicly noticed in 
accordance with the Act, the Board finds that the Revised Rates set forth in Exhibit A are just 
and equitable having been based upon (i) the amount of service furnished;  and (ii) other factors 
affecting the use of the facilities furnished. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The recitals as stated above are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 2.  After public hearing on the matter, the Revised Rates set forth in the 
attached Exhibit A are adopted. 
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4.  This Resolution is intended to repeal and replace Resolution 2021-14. 

Page 8



2 
 

 
SECTION 5. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 

effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of March 2022. 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES 
       IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
  
  
 
Exhibit A:  Schedule of Revised Rates 

Page 9



3 
 

Exhibit A 
Schedule of Revised Rates 

Event Permit $250, plus any professional fees at regular billable rate 
for engineering or legal review, if required 

 
ROW Permit Review Fees 

Review application (1 hr DE, 1 hr OM) $500 
Pre-construction Meeting $500 
Normal review during construction $500 
Final walk through and acceptance $500 

Total $2,000 
 

Development Parcels Review Fees* 
Event Single 

Family 
Residential 
less than 80 

lots 

Single 
Family 

Residential 
80 to 250 

lots 

Single 
Family 

Residential 
greater than 

250 lots 

Multi-
family or 

Non-
residential 
less than 5 

acres 

Multi-family 
or Non-

residential 
greater than 5 

acres 

      
Kick off meeting  $500  $500  $500  $500  $500  

Review of 
Development Plans  $750  $1,550  $2,250  $750  $1,550  
Preparation of 
irrigation and pond 
maintenance 
agreements  $3,700  $5,850  $8,000  $3,700  $4,200  

Plat Review and 
CONP Coordination  $1,000  $1,500  $2,000  $0  $0  
Final Review and 
Acceptance of 
Irrigation 
improvements  $500  $1,000  $1,500  $500  $1,000  

      
Total for Initial 
Phase or Total 
Project $6,450  $10,400  $14,250  $5,450  $7,250  

      
Phase Plat Review 
After Initial Plat Has 
Been Reviewed $1,000 $1,500 $2,000 $0 $0 

 
Miscellaneous: 
Plat without lots review: less than 10 acres = $1,000 
Plat without lots review: greater than 10 acres = $1,500 
 
* Rates will be charged upon the occurrence of each Event for a project. 
* All rates herein may be increased per year without the further need for a rate hearing by a 
maximum of five percent (5%) or the actual CPI for the previous twelve (12) months. 

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23


	West Villages Improvement District - March 10, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 10, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	General District Matters
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting Revised Permit and Development Review Rates, Fees and Charges

	Consider Ratification of Agreement to Implement the Uniform Method for the Collection and Enforcement of Non-Ad Valorem Assessments 


	Unit of Development No. 6
	Consider Ratification of Agreement with Environmental Consulting and Technologies Inc.





